
Treasure Coast Classical Academy 
Special Board Meeting 

December 20, 2022
6:00 P.M.



 Treasure Coast Classical Academy (TCCA) 
 Agenda for Special Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 December 20, 2022, at 6:00 P.M. 
1400 SE Cove Road, Stuart, FL 34997 with Zoom option 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83262614434 

   
  AGENDA 
 

 
1. Meeting Called to Order 
2. Attendance 
3. Opening Ceremony 
4. Agenda Adoption 
5. Board Chair Report  
6. Public Comment - first opportunity 
7. Unfinished Business  

a. Conflict of Interest Statement annual signature  
b. Revised Board Meeting Schedule – (vote)  
c. Centegix Agreement – (vote)  
d. Ratification of other internal controls adopted at the previous meeting - (vote) 
e. Update to Policy 4800 – (vote) 

8. New Business  
a. Board to decide next course of action regarding Optima’s master services agreement - (vote) 

9. Public Comment - second opportunity 
10. Adjournment 

 
 
 
 

Next Board Meeting: Quarterly Meeting on Tuesday, February 7th, 6:00 p.m. 
 
 



1 

Policy 2.7 Conflict of Interest Policies 
The following Conflict of Interest and Anti-Nepotism policy of Treasure Coast 
Classical Academy, Inc. (the “Organization” or “charter school”) is intended to 
supersede and replace all prior conflict of interest policies of the organization.  
The purpose of this conflict of interest policy is to protect this tax-exempt 
organization's interest when it is contemplating entering into a transaction or 
arrangement that might benefit the private interest of an officer or governing 
board member of the organization or might result in a possible excess benefit 
transaction. This policy is intended to supplement but not replace any applicable 
state and federal laws governing conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit and 
charitable organizations. It is also intended to serve as a guide for the 
organization’s governing board with respect to conflicts of interest and voting 
pursuant to Florida laws pertaining to charter school governing boards. 

Adopted: January 17, 2019 
Amended: July 15, 2019 

2.7.1 Conflict of Interest Definitions 

2.7.1.1 Interested Person   

An “Interested Person” is any person serving as a member of the governing board 
of this Organization who, as of the date of discussion or action by the board, 
either: (i) has a direct or indirect Financial Interest, as defined in section 2.7.1.2 
below; (ii) intends, or understands it to be more probable than not, that he or she 
will acquire such a direct or indirect Financial Interest at any time during the 
pendency of the proposed transaction or arrangement; (iii) has an Other Interest 
that qualifies as a Conflict of Interest, as defined in section 2.7.1.6 or 2.7.5 
below. 

2.7.1.2 Financial Interest 

A “Financial Interest" is an interest, whether through business, investment, or 
relative, which can be described as one or more of the following: 

2.7.1.2.1 An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the Organization 
has a transaction or arrangement; or 

2.7.1.2.2 A compensation arrangement with the Organization or with any entity or 
individual with which the Organization has a transaction or arrangement; or 

2.7.1.2.3 A potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement 
with, any entity or individual with which the Organization is negotiating a 
transaction or arrangement. 



2 
 

A Financial Interest need not be held as of the date of discussion or action by the 
board; rather, it is sufficient, for purposes of this policy, if, as of the date of 
discussion or action by the board, the Interested Person intends, or understands it 
to be more probable than not, that he or she will acquire a Financial Interest at 
any time during the pendency of the proposed transaction or arrangement that is 
the subject of discussion or action by the board.  

2.7.1.3 Other Interest  

An “Other Interest,” for purposes of this policy, is any circumstance in which an 
Interested Person may be influenced, or may appear to be influenced, either in 
whole or in part by any purpose or motive other than the success and well-being 
of the Organization as a whole and the achievement of its tax-exempt purposes.  
An example of such an “Other Interest” would include, without limitation of the 
foregoing, if an Interested Person is a parent or grandparent of a student impacted 
by a decision by the board, and the Interested Person does not believe that he/she 
could vote or participate in a discussion by the board giving precedence of the 
well-being of the Organization as a whole over his/her personal interests or the 
interests of his/her child or grandchild.  An “Other Interest” may also be an 
interest set forth in section 2.7.5, below, that does not otherwise constitute a 
Financial Interest. 

2.7.1.4 Relative 

For purposes of this policy, unless otherwise provided herein, and pursuant to 
section 112.3143, Florida Statutes, “Relative” means any father, mother, son, 
daughter, husband, wife, brother, sister, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, 
or daughter-in-law. 

2.7.1.5 Compensation Arrangement 

A “Compensation Arrangement” is any agreement or understanding pursuant to 
which a person may or shall receive either directly or indirectly, money or 
property from another person or organization, irrespective of whether such 
money or property is paid in consideration for the performance of services or the 
provision of other value.   

2.7.1.6 Conflict of Interest  

With respect to a matter for discussion or action by the board, any circumstance 
under which an Interested Person, by virtue of a Financial Interest or Other 
Interest, may be influenced, or may appear to be influenced, either in whole or in 
part by any purpose or motive other than the success and well-being of the 
Organization and the achievement of its tax-exempt purposes. 

Adopted: January 17, 2019 
Amended: July 15, 2019 



3 
 

2.7.2 Disclosure of Financial or Other Interest and Determination of Conflict 

2.7.2.1 Disclosure of Financial or Other Interest 

If, at any time, an Interested Person becomes aware that the board may or shall 
discuss or act upon any transaction or arrangement which may have any bearing 
of any kind upon, or may relate in any manner to, a Financial or Other Interest of 
the Interested Person, such Interested Person shall disclose such Financial or 
Other Interest to the board and the board’s legal counsel as follows: 

2.7.2.1.1 The Interested Person shall provide to the board and the board’s legal counsel, in 
advance of such discussion or action by the board, written (electronic or hard 
copy) disclosure of the existence, nature and extent of the Interested Person’s 
Financial or Other Interest, or 

2.7.2.1.2 The Interested Person shall verbally inform the board and the board’s legal 
counsel of the existence, nature and extent of the Interested Person’s Financial or 
Other Interest during the board meeting in advance of such discussion or action 
by the board. 

Any and all written or verbal disclosures of Financial or Other Interests shall be 
made a formal part of the minutes of the board. In the event that an Interested 
Person provides written disclosure of such Interested Person’s Financial or Other 
Interest, no member of the board may respond to such disclosure, either in 
writing or orally, except in a meeting that meets the requirements of Florida’s 
Sunshine Law. 

2.7.2.2 Recusal by Interested Person, if Legally Permissible   

In connection with an Interested Person’s disclosure of a Financial or Other 
Interest pursuant to section 2.7.2.1, the Interested Person may voluntarily recuse 
himself or herself from discussion and action by the board, at such time and in 
such form as is used by the Interested Person to disclose such Financial or Other 
Interest pursuant to section 2.7.2.1, above.  Such recusal would only be 
permissible if recusal is a permissible action pursuant to Florida law with respect 
to the particular Financial or Other Interest of the Interested Person. 

2.7.2.3 Determination of Conflict of Interest 

Where an Interested Person has provided advance written disclosure of a 
Financial or Other Interest but has not voluntarily recused himself or herself from 
discussion of or action upon the proposed transaction or arrangement, the board 
shall, prior to commencing its discussion or taking action, determine whether the 
Financial or Other Interest creates a Conflict of Interest, as defined above and as 
prohibited by law.  The Interested Person shall not participate in any discussions 
or vote related to this determination except to the extent necessary to fully 
explain the Financial or Other Interest and the manner in which the proposed 



4 
 

transaction or arrangement to be discussed or acted upon by the board may or 
will bear upon or relate to the Financial or Other Interest.   

2.7.2.4 Exceptions   

Pursuant to section 112.313(12), Florida Statutes, the board may consider the 
following exceptions based on constituting a de minimus conflict of interest: 

2.7.2.4.1 The transaction or arrangement is awarded under a system of sealed, competitive 
bidding to the lowest or best bidder and: (a) the board member or the board 
member’s spouse or child has in no way participated in the determination of the 
bid specifications or the determination of the lowest or best bidder; (b) the board 
member or the board member’s spouse or child has in no way used or attempted 
to use the board member’s influence to persuade the agency or any personnel 
thereof to enter such a contract other than by the mere submission of the bid; and 
(c) the board member, prior to or at the time of the submission of the bid, has 
filed a statement with the Commission on Ethics, disclosing the board member’s 
interest, or the interest of the board member’s spouse or child, and the nature of 
the intended transaction or arrangement. 

2.7.2.4.2 The purchase or sale is for legal advertising in a newspaper, for any utilities 
service, or for passage on a common carrier. 

2.7.2.4.3 The business entity involved is the only source of supply and there is full 
disclosure by the board member of his or her interest in the business entity to the 
governing board prior to the purchase, rental, sale, leasing, or other business 
being transacted. 

2.7.2.4.4 The total amount of the transactions in the aggregate between the business entity 
and the Organization does not exceed $500 per calendar year. 

2.7.2.4.5 The fact that a board member is a stockholder, officer, or director of a bank will 
not bar such bank from qualifying as a depository of funds, provided it appears in 
the records of the Organization that the governing board has determined that such 
board member has not favored such bank over other qualified banks. 

2.7.2.4.6 The board member purchases in a private capacity goods or services, at a price 
and upon terms available to similarly situated members of the general public, 
from a business entity which is doing business with the Organization. 

Adopted:  January 17, 2019 
Amended: April 24, 2019 
Amended:  July 15, 2019 

 

2.7.3 Procedures Upon Determination of Conflict of Interest 



5 
 

2.7.3.1 Exclusion from Discussion and Vote   

In circumstances where the board has determined that a Conflict of Interest 
exists, the Interested Person shall not participate in any discussion or vote 
regarding the transaction or arrangement at issue.  While all meetings of the 
board are open public meetings, the Interested Person may choose not be present 
in the meeting room for the discussion or vote relating to the transaction or 
arrangement. 

2.7.3.2 Removal from Board 

Under some circumstances, Florida law does not allow a governing board 
member to be excluded from a vote in order to cure a Conflict of Interest.  If such 
a Conflict of Interest exists, the Interested Person will be required to resign or 
will be removed from the board.  

2.7.3.3 Action by Board 

With respect to any transaction or arrangement with regard to which the board 
has determined that a Conflict of Interest exists, the board shall discuss such 
transaction or arrangement as appropriate, but shall not formally approve such 
transaction or arrangement unless and until the non-interested members of the 
board have decided, by majority vote, that the transaction or arrangement is in 
the best interests of, and for the benefit of, the Organization, and is fair and 
reasonable thereto in all respects.  In complying with this section 2.7.3.2, the 
board shall recognize that, under certain circumstances, a decision made pursuant 
to this section may necessitate an investigation of alternatives to the proposed 
transaction or arrangement, and/or a determination as to whether a more 
advantageous transaction or arrangement might be obtained with reasonable 
efforts under the circumstances. 

Adopted: January 17, 2019 
Amended: July 15, 2019 

 

2.7.4 Documentation of Disclosure and Procedures 

2.7.4.1 Meeting Minutes 

Minutes of meetings of the board shall include copies of all written disclosures of 
Financial and Other Interests, and shall describe all verbal disclosures thereof.  
Such minutes shall further reflect the determination of the board as to whether a 
Conflict of Interest exists, and the objection of the Interested Person, if any, to 
such determination.  Where a Conflict of Interest has been determined to exist, 
the minutes should reflect the board’s compliance with the procedures described 
in sections 2.7.3.1 and 2.7.3.2, above. With respect to any transaction or 



6 
 

arrangement with regard to which a Conflict of Interest has been determined to 
exist, meeting minutes shall describe the substance of the discussions relating to 
the transaction or arrangement, and who was present for such discussions.  In 
addition, minutes should identify the members who were present for any and all 
votes upon such transaction or arrangement, along with a record of the final vote. 

Adopted: January 17, 2019 
Amended: July 15, 2019 

 

2.7.5 Other Prohibited Conflicts of Interest 

2.7.5.1 Prohibition on Solicitation or Acceptance of Gifts 

Pursuant to section 112.313(2), Florida Statutes, no member of the board shall 
solicit or accept anything of value to the board member, including a gift, loan, 
reward, promise of future employment, favor, or service, based upon any 
understanding that the vote, official action, or judgment of the board member 
would be influenced thereby. 

2.7.5.2 Prohibition on Doing Business with the Organization 

Pursuant to section 112.313(3), Florida Statutes, no board member acting in his 
or her official capacity, shall either directly or indirectly purchase, rent, or lease 
any realty, goods, or services for the Organization from any business entity of 
which the board member or the board member’s spouse or child is an officer, 
partner, director, or proprietor or in which such board member or the board 
member’s spouse or child, or any combination of them, has a material interest. 
Nor shall a board member, acting in a private capacity, rent, lease, or sell any 
realty, goods, or services to the Organization. This subsection shall not affect or 
be construed to prohibit contracts entered into prior to the board member’s 
election to the board. 

2.7.5.3 Conflicting Employment or Contractual Relationship 

Pursuant to section 112.313(7), Florida Statutes, no board member shall have or 
hold any employment or contractual relationship with any business entity or any 
agency that is doing business with the Organization; nor shall a board member 
have or hold any employment or contractual relationship that will create a 
continuing or frequently recurring conflict between his or her private interests 
and the performance of his or her duties as a board member or that would impede 
the full and faithful discharge of his or her duties as a board member. 

2.7.5.4 Voting Where there is a Conflict of Interest 

Pursuant to section 112.3143, Florida Statutes, no board member shall vote in an 
official capacity upon any measure which would inure to his or her special 



7 
 

private gain or loss; which he or she knows would inure to the special private 
gain or loss of any principal by whom he or she is retained or to the parent 
organization or subsidiary of a corporate principal by which he or she is retained; 
or which he or she knows would inure to the special private gain or loss of a 
Relative or business associate of the board member.  

2.7.5.5 Prohibition of Certain Individuals Serving as Governing Board Members 

Pursuant to section 1002.33(26)(c), Florida Statutes, an employee of the charter 
school overseen by this Organization, or his or her spouse, or an employee of a 
charter management organization, or his or her spouse, shall not be a member of 
the governing board of this Organization. 

Adopted: January 17, 2019 
Amended: July 15, 2019 

 

2.7.6 Restriction on Employment of Relatives, Pursuant to Section 1002.33(24), 
Florida Statutes 

2.7.6.1 Charter School Personnel 

For purposes of this section 2.7.6, “charter school personnel” means a charter 
school owner, president, chairperson of the board of directors, superintendent, 
board member, principal, assistant principal, or any other person employed by the 
charter school who has equivalent decision making authority and in whom is 
vested the authority, or to whom the authority has been delegated, to appoint, 
employ, promote, or advance individuals or to recommend individuals for 
appointment, employment, promotion, or advancement in connection with 
employment in a charter school, including the authority as a member of a 
governing body of a charter school to vote on the appointment, employment, 
promotion, or advancement of individuals. 

2.7.6.2 Relative 

For purposes of this section 2.7.6 “Relative” means father, mother, son, daughter, 
brother, sister, uncle, aunt, first cousin, nephew, niece, husband, wife, father-in-
law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, 
stepfather, stepmother, stepson, stepdaughter, stepbrother, stepsister, half-
brother, or half-sister. 

2.7.6.3 Nepotism Prohibition 

Charter school personnel may not appoint, employ, promote, or advance, or 
advocate for appointment, employment, promotion, or advancement, in or to a 
position in the charter school in which the personnel are serving or over which 
the personnel exercises jurisdiction or control any individual who is a relative. 



8 
 

An individual may not be appointed, employed, promoted, or advanced in or to a 
position in a charter school if such appointment, employment, promotion, or 
advancement has been advocated by charter school personnel who serve in or 
exercise jurisdiction or control over the charter school and who is a relative of the 
individual or if such appointment, employment, promotion, or advancement is 
made by the governing board of which a relative of the individual is a member. 

2.7.6.4 Budget Approval 

The approval of budgets does not constitute “jurisdiction or control” for the 
purposes of this subsection. 

Adopted: January 17, 2019 
Amended: July 15, 2019 

 

2.7.7 Disclosure of Identity of Relatives Employed by, or Assigned to Work at, 
Charter School 

2.7.7.1 Annual Disclosure 

On an annual basis, and in accordance with section 1002.33(7)(a)18., Florida 
Statutes, the charter school shall disclose to its sponsoring school district the 
identity of all relatives employed by, or assigned to work at, the charter school 
who are relatives of a member of the governing board of directors, 
superintendent, principal, assistant principal or any other person employed by, or 
assigned to work at, the charter school.  For purposes of this section 2.7.7, the 
term “relative” has the same meaning as set forth in section 2.7.6, above. 

Adopted: January 17, 2019 
Amended: July 15, 2019 

 

2.7.8 Employment of Relatives 

2.7.8.1 Compliance 

In the event that relatives, as defined above, are employed by, or assigned to 
work at, the charter school, these procedures shall be followed to ensure 
compliance with Florida law and charter contract requirements. 

2.7.8.2 Document Maintenance 

Documentation shall be maintained in the employees’ files to verify that no 
relative advocated for the employment or advancement of such employee.  In 
addition, such documentation shall include the non-related individual(s) 
responsible for direct supervision, evaluation and other employment decisions 



9 
 

regarding the employees.  Such documentation shall be presented as an 
information item to the charter school governing board. 

Adopted: January 17, 2019 
Amended: July 15, 2019 

 

2.7.9 Training and Background Screening Requirements 

2.7.9.1 Governance Training 

 Pursuant to section 1002.33(9)(j), Florida Statutes, each director of the governing 
board shall participate in governance training approved by the Florida 
Department of Education no later than 90 days after final appointment to the 
governing board. 

 Required governance training consists of a minimum of four (4) hours of 
instruction focusing on government in the areas of sunshine, conflicts of interest, 
ethics, and financial responsibility.  

 After the initial four (4) hour training, each director of the governing board is 
required, within the subsequent three (3) years as a governing board member, and 
for each three (3) year period thereafter, to complete a two (2) hour refresher 
training on the four (4) topics above in order to retain his or her position on the 
board. Any director who fails to obtain the two (2) hour refresher training within 
any three (3) year period must take the four (4) hours of instruction again in order 
to regain eligibility as a director. 

2.7.9.2 Background Checks 

Pursuant to section 1002.33(12)(g), Florida Statutes, each director of the 
governing board shall undergo fingerprinting and background screening no later 
than thirty (30) days following final appointment to the governing board.  
Fingerprinting and background screening shall be updated periodically as 
required by law.  Until such time as required fingerprinting and background 
screening is completed and cleared for each director, no such director shall be 
permitted on campus while students are present without an escort of charter 
school staff. 

Adopted: July 15, 2019 

 

2.7.10 Initial and Annual Written Assent 

2.7.10.1 Initial and Annual Statements 



10 
 

Each director, principal officer and member of a committee with governing board 
delegated powers shall, upon initial appointment and annually, sign a statement, 
in substantially the same form as attached as Exhibit A to this policy, which 
affirms such person:  

2.7.10.1.1 Has received a copy of the conflicts of interest policy; 

2.7.10.1.2 Has read and understands the policy; 

2.7.10.1.3 Has agreed to comply with the policy; 

2.7.10.1.4 Understands the Organization is charitable and in order to maintain its federal tax 
exemption, it must engage primarily in activities which accomplish one or more 
of its tax-exempt purposes; and  

2.7.10.1.5 If a charter school governing board member, is current in background checks and 
governing board training as required by Florida law for charter school governing 
board members. 

2.7.10.1.6 Said form shall be updated from time to time to reflect changes in law and best 
practices for charter school governing boards. 

Adopted: July 15, 2019 

 

2.7.11 Periodic Reviews 

2.7.11.1 Review Intent and Scope 

To ensure the Organization operates in a manner consistent with charitable 
purposes and does not engage in activities that could jeopardize its tax-exempt 
status, periodic reviews shall be conducted. The periodic reviews shall, at a 
minimum, include the following subjects:  

2.7.11.1.1. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are reasonable, based on 
competent survey information, and are the result of arm's length bargaining.  

2.7.11.1.2 Whether transactions or arrangements entered into by the Organization conform 
to the Organization's written policies, are properly recorded, reflect reasonable 
investment or payments for goods and services, further charitable purposes and 
do not result in personal inurement, impermissible private benefit or in an excess 
benefit transaction.  

Adopted: July 15, 2019 

 

2.7.12 Use of Outside Experts 





12 
 

 

2.7.14 EXHIBIT A 

WRITTEN AFFIRMATION BY GOVERNING BOARD OR COMMITTEE 
MEMBER 

TREASURE COAST CLASSICAL ACADEMY, INC. 

This written affirmation is provided in accordance with the Conflict of Interest 
policy of Treasure Coast Classical Academy, Inc., (“Organization”) adopted and 
effective as of July 15, 2019, (“policy”).  In accordance with the policy, by my 
signature below, I hereby affirm the following: 

1. I have received a copy of the policy. 
2. I have read and understand the policy. 
3. I agree to comply with the policy, and I am currently in compliance. 
4. I understand the Organization is charitable, and in order to maintain its 

federal tax exemption, it must engage primarily in activities which 
accomplish one or more of its tax-exempt purposes. 

5. If I am a charter school governing board member, I am current in 
background checks and governing board training as required by Florida 
law for charter school governing board members. 

 

 

Signed: ___________________________________________ 

 

Printed Name: _____________________________________  

 

Title and Office: ___________________________________ 

 

Date: _______________________________________ 

Adopted: July 15, 2019 

 



Revised: 11-22-2022            Approved: 
MEETING MONTH TASKS Meeting Dates

July - Quarterly in-person Annual Meeting Tuesday, July 19, 2022
Term renewal 10:00-11:00 AM
Election of members, roles
Staffing Plan
Performance salary schedule
Salary Supplement List
Principal Evaluation
Optima Evaluation
Mental Health Assistance Allocation Plan (MHAA)
Active Assailant Response Plan

August (Zoom) Policies Tuesday, August 16, 2022
Code of Student Conduct 10:00-11:00 AM
Student Progression Plan

September Quarterly in-person Annual Audit Approval Tuesday, September 13, 2022
Evaluation System Approval 10:00-11:00 AM

October (Zoom) Survey 2 OOF List (October 10-14) Tuesday, October 11, 2022
Academic Calendar 10:00-11:00 AM

February 2023 Quarterly in-person Survey 3 OOF List (February 6-10) Tuesday, February 7, 2023
Annual Enrollment Capacity 6:00-7:00 PM

April - in person Preliminary budget review Tuesday, April 25, 2023
6:00-7:00 PM

May - in person Final budget approval Tuesday, May 23, 2023
[due to DAC 6/1] 6:00-7:00 PM

July - Quarterly in-person Annual Meeting Tuesday, July 18, 2023
Term renewal 6:00-7:00 PM
Election of members, roles
Staffing Plan
Performance salary schedule
Salary Supplement List
Principal Evaluation
Optima Evaluation
Mental Health Assistance Allocation Plan (MHAA)
Active Assailant Response Plan
Policies
Code of Student Conduct
Student Progression Plan

August (Zoom) Tuesday, August 15, 2023
6:00-7:00 PM

2022-2023 TCCA Board Meeting Schedule



Submitted on: 8/18/2022

Valid 45 days

Quote #

TCCAFL-001

5

Location Sites Annual Rate (Per Site)

ALL SITES - DISTRICT WIDE IMPLEMENTATION 1 $7,000

Primary/Elementary School 1

Middle School

High School

Admin Building 1

Setup & Installation (one-time) 1

Implementation (one-time) 1

Shipping (one-time) 1

NOTES:  

Quote includes site mapping and training, along with software licensing and hardware warranty 

based on the term selected.

Annual contract will renew after the selected term expires at CENTEGIX then current pricing.

CENTEGIX™ will invoice based on the following billing milestones:

• 50% of the cost due upon the PO date/order date

• 50% due upon 90 days PO date/order date

• All invoices are payable on Net 30 terms.

Amounts do not include local, state or federal taxes. If you are tax exempt, please provide a tax exempt form otherwise sales tax will be charged.

(800) 950-9202   2120 Powers Ferry Road SE, Suite 110, Atlanta, GA 30339    sales@centegix.com

$3,000

$1,500

$400

5 Year Grand Total $39,900

$3,000

$1,500

$400

Term Rate (Per Site) Amount

$35,000$35,000

Bill To: Ship To (if different):

Treasure Coast Classical Academy

1400 SE Cove Road

Stuart, FL 34997
Terms (Years)

Quote



 

 

 

-- 4800 -- TCCA General Financial Policies 

 

A.  Property and Supplies 

 

Office equipment and supplies are to be used for official business only. All property and supplies 

should be stored in a secure location. 

 

The clerical support staff will maintain an inventory of basic office supplies used. Request for 

supplies should be submitted for approval through the school operations manager or designee. 

 

 

B.  Purchasing 

 

All equipment and supplies must be ordered through the school operations manager or designee. Once 

a purchase has been approved, the documentation required by specific grantors and/or the bookkeeper 

will be prepared and executed by the school operations manager or designee. Any purchase over 

$4,999 will include written/printed documents indicating price estimates or quotes from the vendor. 

This documentation will be maintained in a secure file for review when needed. Purchases below 

$4,999 will include approvals and receipts. 

 

Purchase orders are required for purchases over $4,999 and will include: 

1. Date 

2. Purchase Order Numbers 

3. Vendor Name 

4. Vendor Telephone Number 

5. General Description 

6. Amount (Estimated) 

7. Preparer's Signature and Date 

 

Micro Purchase Procedures 

The school operations manager, or designee, is authorized to make purchases under $5,000 to 

purchase commodities or contractual services where the total amount does not exceed the applicable 

appropriation in the academy budget. 

 

Small Purchase Procedures (Simplified Acquisition) 

Any purchase between $5,000 and $250,000 will include documentation of price quotes by three 



different vendors, unless waived, as described in the waiver section below. 

 

Competitive Procurement Procedures 

Any purchase over $250,000 will adhere to the following formal bid process, unless waived, as 

described in the waiver section below: 

1. A written Request for Proposal (RFP) will be sent to a minimum of three vendors. 

2. The RFP will include clear and accurate description of the material, product or service to be 

procured without unnecessary requirements which unduly restrict competition. 

3. The RFP will include descriptions of any technical requirements. 

4. The RFP will include specific features of brand name or equivalent descriptions that bidders 

must meet. 

5. The business or contractor selection process will consider their ability to perform to the fullest 

extent possible, as well as, their integrity, record of past performance and financial and 

technical resources. 

6. All received RFPs will be documented, price compared and maintained in a secure file for 

review when needed. 

 

Sole Source Procurements 

If a sole source procurement is made, a written justification must be documented and approved by the 

school operations manager. 

 

A contract may be awarded for a supply or service without competition when the school operations 

manager or a designee, determines in writing that there is only one source for the required supply or 

service. This method of procurement involves no competition and should be utilized only when 

justified and necessary to serve the needs of the academy. 

 

Waivers of Small Purchase Procedures and Competitive Procurements 

 

The requirement for requesting three quotes or competitive solicitations for commodities or 

contractual services from three or more sources is hereby waived as authorized by section 1010.04(4) 

(a), F.S., for: 

 

 

1. Purchases at or below the specified prices from contracts awarded by other city or county 

governmental agencies, district school boards, community colleges, federal agencies, the 

public or governmental agencies of any state, or from state university system cooperative bid 

agreements. When the proposer awarded a contract by another entity defined herein will 

permit purchases by the academy at the same terms, conditions, and prices (or below such 

prices) awarded in such contract, and such purchases are to the economic advantage of the 

academy. 

2. The purchase by the academy of professional services which shall include, without limitation, 

artistic services; academic program reviews; lectures by individuals; auditing services not 

subject to Section 218.391, F.S.; legal services, including attorney, paralegal, expert witness, 

court reporting, appraisal or mediator services; and health services involving examination, 

diagnosis, treatment, prevention, medical consultation or administration. 



3. When acquiring, whether by purchase, lease, with option to purchase, rental or otherwise, 

information technology, as defined in Section 282.0041(14), F.S., may make any acquisitions 

through the competitive solicitation process as described herein or by direct negotiation and 

contract with a vendor or supplier, as best fits the needs of the academy. 

4. The purchase of educational services and any type of copyrighted materials including, without 

limitation, educational tests, textbooks, printed instructional materials, computer software, 

films, filmstrips, videotapes, DVDs, disc or tape recordings, digital recordings, or similar 

audio-visual materials, and for library and reference books, and printed library cards where 

such materials are purchased directly from the producer or publisher, the owner of the 

copyright, an exclusive agent within the state, a governmental agency or a recognized 

educational institution. 

5. Except as otherwise required by statute, when purchasing insurance, entering risk 

management programs, or contracting with third party administrators, may make any such 

acquisitions through the competitive solicitation process as described herein or by direct 

negotiations and contract. 

6. A contract for commodities or contractual services may be awarded without competitive 

solicitations if state or federal law, a grant or federal agency contract prescribes with whom 

the academy must contract or if the rate of payment is established during the appropriations 

process. 

7. A contract for regulated utilities or government franchised services may be awarded without 

competitive solicitations. Purchases made pursuant to exemptions from competitive 

solicitations shall follow procedures as established by the school operations manager. 

 

 

C.  Contracts 

A limited number of employees and board officers will be authorized to sign contracts, and there shall 

be no fewer than two individuals at all times. This policy applies to all regular contracts on behalf of 

the school. 

Board approval is required for all contracts, whether for goods or services, that are: 

1. Multi-year in duration and/or 

2. At or above $25,000 and/or 

3. Involve the expenditure of reserve funds and/or 

4. Contain an automatic renewal clause 

 

 

As of December 20, 2022, any financial matter necessitating board approval shall be placed 

on the agenda for consideration by a lawful quorum at a properly noticed meeting and may 

not be approved by any individual officer of the board. 

 

Authorized Signers 

The board of directors shall provide authorization to individuals to be able to sign contracts 

on behalf of the school. Such approvals will be documented in the meeting minutes. Any 

person who is no longer entitled to approve contracts on behalf of the school will be notified 

in writing. 

 



Signature Levels Required 

All contracts will require one signature as designated by the board, contingent that contracts 

are within the approved budget line items. Contracts that are over budget require board 

approval. 

 

Adopted: November 18, 2019 

Amended: February 24, 2020 

Amended: December 20, 2022 

 

 

Notes for Micro-Purchase: govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2021-06-10/pdf... 

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2021-06-10/pdf/2021-11864.pdf

	Cover Page
	AGENDA
	Conflict of Interest Statement
	Revised 2022-2023 Board Meeting Schedule
	Centegix Quote 
	4800 TCCA General Financial Policies



